
1 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, May 1, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 
4. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting February 6 and workshop meeting March 6, 2014 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearings 

 
a. Request from Gary Barner, of Barner Farms, South Haven, to operate a seasonal 

farm market at 708 La Grange Street. 
b. Request from John and Vickie Hannigan to construct an inground pool at their 

property at 711 North Shore Drive. 
 

7. Other Business – Site Plan Review 
 
Joe Wiltgen requests a site plan review for a barge restaurant on the Black River just up river 
from the Idler Restaurant. 
 
8. Commissioner Comments 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 1 of 60



1 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, February 6, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order by Paull at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Heinig, Miles, Peterson, Wall, Webb, Paull 
Absent:  Frost, Smith 
 
Anderson noted that both Frost and Smith had notified her of their inability to attend.  
 
On motion with second, Frost and Smith were excused. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 

Motion by Miles, second by Wall to approve the February 6, 2014 Planning Commission 
Agenda as presented on the City of South Haven website.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – January 9, 2014 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Miles to approve the January 9, 2014 minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
6. Unfinished Business – Discussion of following items from the January agenda: 

 
A. A zoning ordinance text amendment to add One Family Detached Dwellings to the list of 

uses permitted in the B-3, Waterfront Business Zone.  
 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 2 of 60



February 6, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Draft 

2 
 

 
 
Paull questioned the size of lots required for one family detached dwellings in the B-3 zone. 
Anderson reviewed the proposed requirements for single family homes in the B-3 zone. 
 
Paul pointed out that the proposed addition to the B-3, Waterfront Business zone would not 
put at risk the zone continuing as a waterfront business district. The Planning Commission 
sub-committee recognized approximately fifteen (15) single-family homes already in the 
zone plus another dozen lots that are too small to develop as a waterfront business but 
could possibly be used for a single family home site under the conditions as stated. 
 
Motion by Wall, second by Miles to recommend to city council the approval of the proposed 
amendment to Article IX, B-3, Waterfront Business District, Section 901 Use Regulations of 
the South Haven Zoning Ordinance as follows: 
 

 “One family detached dwellings on existing lots when it is documented that the 
development of any other permitted use is not possible due to lot size or 
configuration.  

 
 Conversion of an existing permitted use to single family homes on individual lots 
is not permitted without a special use permit from the planning commission. In 
addition to the standards found in Section 1502 of this ordinance, the applicant 
shall demonstrate that the conversion is of substantial benefit to the city of 
South Haven and the waterfront business community.” 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
B. A request from the City of South Haven Planning Commission to amend the official 

zoning map to rezone the properties at 515, 519 and 521 Williams Street and 423 and 
425 Williams Street from B-3, Waterfront Business Zone to the CBD, Central Business 
Zone: 
 

Anderson introduced the proposed text amendment, noting that at the January meeting the 
commission heard public comments on the changes proposed. Since that time, business 
owners and association representatives have met to discuss the concerns associated with 
the rezoning proposal as heard at the public hearing. 
 
Anderson explained that staff has had discussions with involved parties; the issues have 
been resolved and the association no longer objects, provided that the height restriction is 
removed from the proposed amendment. 
 
Anderson explained that this would change the Old Harbor Village and Old Harbor Inn, 
including those businesses in the condominium association related to the Old Harbor 
development, from B-3, Waterfront Business to the CBD, Central Business District with the 
advantages (opportunity for additional waterside dining and relief from the off-street parking 
requirements) outweighing the concerns heard. Anderson also recommended that the 
proposed text change associated with the building height be deleted from the request and 
noted that this provision was not initiated by the planning commission or the subcommittee.  
Paull noted that this amendment recognizes what has been and is actually happening in the 
Old Harbor development. Over time, parking requirements have either been eliminated, 
granted waivers or were part of the now defunct buy-in parking program. Since there 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 3 of 60



February 6, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Draft 

3 
 

actually is no parking available at this time for this area, changing the zoning from B-3, 
Waterfront Business to the CBD, Central Business District, eliminates the requirement for 
parking, making the area open to future development and other potential opportunities. 
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Wall to recommend to city council the rezoning of the following 
properties: 

 
519 Williams Street (C299A) 
519 Williams Street (C299A1) 
521 Williams Street (C299B) 
423 Williams Street, Units #1-8 
515 Williams Street, Units #1-19, 30-38, and #61-62 
425 Williams Street, Units #20-29 and #39-60  

 
from B-3, Waterfront Business Zone to the CBD, Central Business Zone. 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
C. Proposed Noise Restriction on Businesses Rezoned from B-3, Waterfront Business 

District to the CBD, Central Business District.  
 

Anderson explained that as noted during previous discussion, the height amendment has 
been removed from the proposed text amendment.   
 
Added was the noise provision which was on the agenda at the last meeting, having been 
added at the last minute. Anderson read the proposed ordinance amendment: 
 

Any business in the CBD located north of Williams Street, including those 
businesses which extend over the Black River, shall not have amplified sound after 
11:00 P.M. This provision includes the use of any loudspeaker, music amplifier, 
public address system or similar device used to amplify sounds. This sound 
provision is in addition to any requirements in other City ordinances and that, in 
case of any inconsistency, the stricter of the provisions will apply. 

 
Anderson explained that staff had correspondence from the Old Harbor Village Association 
president, stating that the Old Harbor Village Condominium Association will go along with 
the rezoning proposal if Joe Wiltgen signs an agreement that he understands and will abide 
by noise restrictions as presented at the last meeting. Signatures were obtained on an 
agreement between the Planning Commission and Mr. Wiltgen stating that he will abide by 
all city ordinances. Anderson pointed out that this type of restriction really comes into play 
with any Special Use application and does not have much bearing on the proposed 
rezoning. 
 
Paull noted that this particular portion of the amendments came out of discussions with the 
Old Harbor Village Condominium Association and the owners of the Old Harbor Inn, whose 
particular concern was trying to run a hotel in a neighborhood that has many sources of 
noise, particularly bars. The owners of the inn were concerned with keeping the noise at a 
level that would not disturb their guests. Paull said he believes that this came out of a 
concern to have the cessation of amplified music at a specific time, 11:00 p.m. Since then, 
review of the ordinance by staff has shown that the limit for amplified noise in the City Code 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 4 of 60



February 6, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Draft 

4 
 

of Ordinances is at 10:00 p.m. Paull stated that passing this amendment would amount to 
conflict with city code and dereliction of duty by the Planning Commission. 
 
Wall asked the chair for clarification of what is being asked of the Planning Commission. 
Wall stated that the City Code of Ordinances clearly states that amplified noise shall end at 
10:00 p.m. and that the police have the right to go in and reprimand or ticket the 
establishment which does not comply. We also have two signed agreements stating that the 
people concerned, John Marple, the manager of Old Harbor Inn and Wiser) have agreed to 
this. Anderson pointed out that, if a special use permit was being considered, the applicant 
would be allowed to amplify sound until 11:00 p.m. Wall asked whether the chair was 
suggesting that the Planning Commission should take the whole issue of noise end time out 
of the ordinance or just insert the new verbiage.  
 
Anderson interjected that the current City Code requires amplified sound to be turned down 
at 10:00 p. m. and that this proposal for an 11:00 p.m. end time confuses the issue. 
Anderson explained that no matter what this amendment might state, the more restrictive 
ordinance will pre-empt any others.  
 
Anderson asked the chair if Old Harbor Village association president Wiser could be allowed 
to speak to this controversy. Paull invited Mr. Wiser to the podium. 
 
Wiser explained he is the owner of a large portion of the Old Harbor Inn and asked for 
clarification of the question. Anderson explained that the City Code of Ordinances stated 
that amplified noise must cease at 10:00 p.m. and the agreement verbiage regarding 11:00 
p.m. being requested is moot because in the case of conflict between ordinances the police 
will enforce the more restrictive ordinance.  
 
Wiser stated that the condominium association had a concern and wanted to try to restrict 
the noise. “We didn’t really intend to change the ordinance,” Wiser explained.  
 
Paull asked if the Wiser would agree to allow the ordinance to stand as it is. Wiser said the 
association has two conflicts: the timing of the noise and possible conflict with Wiltgen, who 
Wiser considers a friend.  
 
Wall asked whether we should change the time in the amendment or strike the entire 
proposed noise amendment.  
 
Anderson suggested an alternative way to handle this, referencing the actual wording of the 
noise ordinance in the amendment.  
 
Paull agreed that might be an appropriate way to deal with the noise issue, explaining that 
the type of noise is the real issue.  
 
Wall commented that use of the references to City Code will make it simple for any 
proposed business as it would point them to the current City Code of Ordinances’ conditions 
for amplified music by reference.  
 
Anderson noted that she would draft language referencing the City Code of Ordinances 
which will clarify what is being discussed. 
 
Paull called for a recommendation to council. 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 5 of 60



February 6, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Draft 

5 
 

 
Motion by Wall to add in the reference to the City of South Haven Code of Ordinances to 
this section of the Zoning Ordinance amendment. Second by Peterson. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
7. New Business - None 

 
8. Other Business - None 
 
9. Commissioner Comments 

 
Wall: None 
Peterson:  None 
Miles: Ice Breaker was a success; very well attended 
Webb: None 
Heinig: None 
 
Anderson:  We have nothing on the agenda as of yet; unless we get an application in 
the next few days, there will not be a meeting in March. 

 
10. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Wall, second by Heinig to adjourn at 7:34 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 6 of 60



 

1 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Work Session Minutes 
Thursday, March 6, 2014 
7:00 p.m., Conference Room B 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
The meeting was called to order by chair Paull at 7:00 p.m. Present in addition to Paull were 
members Peterson, Smith and Heinig.  
 
Paull introduced the discussion items stating that city council has included in their 2014 
goals that the planning commission shall review the noise and vendor ordinances. This 
meeting was held to begin working on a strategy for completing that task. 
 
After brief discussion of the ordinances, it was decided that the ordinances would be 
reviewed concurrently by separate subcommittees. The mayor, city clerk and police chief will 
be included in the discussions to supply history and direction. 
 
Staff will send email sign up lists to all planning commission members and preliminary 
meeting dates will be scheduled. Staff will also check availability of other officials to be 
included. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m.  

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 7 of 60



 

 
South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    
 

2 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #3 

Review and Discuss 
Noise and Vendor Ordinances 

 
 

 
Background Information:  
 
At their annual goal setting session this week, the city council discussed the need for a review of 
two (2) city ordinances: the noise ordinance and the vendor ordinance. They have asked the 
planning commission to begin this review and draft any amendments determined necessary. 
They have identified some areas of concern which we will discuss at the meeting. 
 
I would like to begin this process with a work session to discuss the ordinances as they read 
now and to identify any additional problem areas. The planning commission may decide to 
appoint a subcommittee to work on drafting the initial changes. The planning commission will 
eventually hold a public hearing before presenting recommended changes to the city council.  
 
It is expected that the project will be completed in July of this year. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Please review the attached ordinances and be prepared to discuss at the March 6 work session. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Noise Ordinance 
Vendor Ordinance 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 8 of 60



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 
May 1, 2014 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6a 

Seasonal Farm Market 
Special Use Request 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 

 
Background Information:  
 
The applicant would like to operate a seasonal produce stand on the former site of the Max 10 
store (currently vacant). Venders on private property are permitted to sell their own goods and 
produce for a period of up to two weeks, twice a year with a permit from the zoning 
administrator. Since this applicant is seeking to operate for a longer period, a special use permit 
under section 1510.13 is required.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the farm stand special use with the following conditions:  
 

1. The setback for any tents or covers shall be at least 25 feet from the property line.  
2. The area will be kept clear of all debris  
3. Trash bins shall be provided but will need to be removed after hours  
4. The stand shall be secured in the after hours.  
5. Only one sandwich board sign is permitted on a property  

 
 
Support Material:  
 
Completed application with narrative  
Case Summary  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 9 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 10 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 11 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 12 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 13 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 14 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 15 of 60



GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Case Number ........................ 2014-0004 SLU 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 05.01.2014 
 
Applicant ............................... Gary Barner 
 
Request ................................ Applicant requests a seasonal farm stand in the B-2 zoning 

district. This request is supported by ordinance section 1510.13.  
 
Location ................................ 708 La Grange Street (Former Max 10 site) 
 
Parcel Number ...................... 80-53-590-050-00 
 
Size ....................................... The sales will take place under a portable awning structure. The 

property is 0.5 acres in size (21,780 square feet)  
 
Street Frontage ..................... 266’ on La Grange; 236’ on Phillips 
 
Current Zoning ...................... B-2 General Business 
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No Change 
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: B-2 and R-1B Districts  
 South: B-2 District 
 East: R-1B District 
 West: B-2 District 
 
Current Land Use .................. Vacant commercial property; former Max 10 building remains 

onsite 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Residential and commercial 
 South: Residential and vacant commercial 
 East: Residential 
 West:  Commercial 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Commercial  
 

 

CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The Subject Property is located at 708 La Grange Street. This is a busy intersection with a mix 
of commercial and residential land uses. The character of the area is consistant with the current 
zoning and future land use classification in its general commercial use.  

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
The applicant would like to operate a seasonal produce stand on the former site of the Max 10 
store. Venders on private property are permitted to sell their own goods for a period of up to two 
weeks, twice a year with a permit from the zoning administrator. Since this applicant is seeking 
to operate for a longer period, a special use permit under Section 1510.13 is required. 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 16 of 60



Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 

PUBLIC RESPONSE 
N/A or describe 
 

EVALUATION 
The following provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement (in italics) 
representing the status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 
Section 1510.13.  FARM MARKETS 
 

1. Locational requirements - Farm markets are permitted by special use permit on major 
thoroughfares in the B-2, B-4 and CBD districts for the sale of produce, fruit and farm 
products only.  

 
2. Site requirements 
 a. Minimum lot size of the district. In addition, it is permissible for a farm market to 

occupy a lot that has another use provided all requirements of this ordinance are 
met. 

 b. No activity or structure shall be located within twenty-five (25) feet of the public 
road right-of-way. 

 c. A minimum of six (6) spaces for off-street parking, outside of the public road 
right-of-way shall be required for the exclusive use of the farm market with 
additional spaces at the rate of one (1) space for each three-hundred (300) 
square feet of gross floor area (paving not required). 

 d. Suitable containers for rubbish shall be placed on the premises for public use. 
 e. A storage structure shall be permitted provided it does not exceed two hundred 

(200) square feet in area. 
 f. Farm markets shall be located no closer than one-hundred (100) feet from any lot 

line which abuts a residential zone or dwelling unit. 
 g. There shall be at least one access drive which shall be wide enough to 

accommodate two vehicles side-by-side. 
 
3. Buffering requirements  
 a. Shall comply with requirements of section 1709. 
 b. The outdoor storage of trash or rubbish shall be screened in accordance with 

section 1709. 
 
4. Performance standards 
 a. Hours of operation shall be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
 b. Any structure used as a farm market shall not be more than one (1) story high 

unless it is an existing barn 
 

The proposed market will be in the B-2 zoning district. The existing business on the property is 
no longer active which provides ample parking for the market. The location of the stand appears 
to be too close to the property line but there is room for it to be moved back. Trash containers 
will need to be provided but do not necessarily need to be screened if they are removed after 
hours. There is access provided for the use. 
 
The hours proposed, 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. comply with ordinance requirements. 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 17 of 60



Page 3 of 4 

 
Screening may be waived given the seasonal nature of the proposed use. 
 

 

Article XV (Section 1502, Basis of Determination): 

 

1. General standards - the planning commission shall review the particular circumstances 
of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   
 
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

 
This is a commercial property and the use will be seasonal. There should be no 
negative impact on the surrounding neighborhood provided the site is well 
maintained and free of debris. 

 
B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 

area.   
 

The subject property is surrounded by other B-2 parcels.  The nature of the 
proposed use is compatible with the B-2 character. 

 
C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 

values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 
be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 
There should be no harmful effects on the neighborhood as the use is only farm 
sales and will not produce dust, fumes or other irritants. 

 
D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 

excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

 
None expected. 

 
E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 

 
It is a stated goal of the 2011 Master Plan to, “Embrace the agricultural 
community as a valuable local industry (examples: Farmer's market, farming 
supply stores, fruit and vegetable processing and cold storage, agricultural 
related festivals, spin off industries)” and to “Develop agricultural and historical 
tourism in the region, supporting farmers market, farm tours, farm stands.” 
 

  This application helps further that goal. 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 18 of 60



Page 4 of 4 

 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
 

The site plan will need to show the stand moved back from the property line but 
otherwise is in keeping with the needs of this request. 

G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 
requirements for that use. 

 
The owner will need to show evidence of any such permits, if required. 

 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 
 
All such provisions will be in compliance with some minor site plan additions or 
changes. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the farm stand special use with the following conditions: 
 

1. The setback for any tents or covers shall be at least 25 feet from the property line. 
2. The area will be kept clear of all debris 
3. Trash bins shall be provided but will need to be removed after hours 
4. The stand shall be secured in the after hours. 
5. Only one sandwich board sign is permitted 

 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 19 of 60



 
Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
May 01, 2014 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6b 

Waterfront Pool Special Use Permit 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: John and Vickie Hannigan are requesting a special use permit to 
install an inground pool at 711 North Shore Drive. Details of the proposed pool and location are 
included in this packet. The applicant will also have a 3-D graphic presentation of the proposed 
pool and surrounding property at the planning commission meeting. 
 
Swimming pools are permitted on waterfront lots only with a special use permit per zoning 
ordinance section 1725, which reads: 
 
SECTION 1725, 2-d SWIMMING POOLS  

 
Pools shall be allowed only in side or rear yards except on waterfront lots abutting the 
Black River or Lake Michigan, where no pool is permitted in any yard without a special 
use permit. The Planning Commission shall ensure that views of the water from abutting 
property are not unreasonably obscured by the pool, a fence, or related accessory 
structures. 
 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the planning commission review the case summary, 
visit the site and determine if this application for a special use permit meets the intent of the city 
and, if it does, include any conditions they feel necessary.  Staff has no objection to the 
approval of this special use permit. 
 
Support Material: 
Application 
Survey 
Site plan 
Case study 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 20 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 21 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 22 of 60



DRAWN BY:

PROJECT MANAGEMENT:

John &
Vickie

HANNIGAN
Residence

DATE :

SHEET NO. :

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT No. :

14.2.01

© VISBEEN ARCHITECTS, Inc.

STAFF CREDITS :

SHEET TITLE :

ISSUE DESCRIPTION :

4/2/14

PROJECT :

A0.1

Paul Fikse

SITE

PLAN

711 NORTH SHORE
DRIVE SOUTH

HAVEN MICHIGAN

TOP OF

BLUFF

615

615

615

615

61
5

61
0

60
5

60
059

5

59
0

590

58
5

58
558

5

58
5

58
0

57
5

61
9

61
8

61
7

61
6

61
4

58
9

589

58
9

58
8

58
8

58
8

58
7

58
7

58
7

58
7

58
6

58
6

58
6

58
6

58
4

58
4

58
3

58
2

58
1

57
9

57
8

57
7

57
6

57
4

24' DRIVEWAY EASEMENT
L. 1427, P. 44

20' YARD

EASEMENT

GRAVEL

DRIVE

8

9

10

11

12

BENCHMARK

NAIL/ W. SIDE

ELEV. - 616.13'

C
U

R
B

A
S

P
H

A
LT

SIDEWALK

ORDINARY HIGH

WATER MARK

 POWER POLE

ELEV.-NAVD 88 = 584'

FL
O

O
D

 Z
O

N
E

A 
E

1.
26

 A
c.

A
R

E
A 

TO
 O

R
D

IN
A

R
Y

H
IG

H
 W

AT
E

R
 M

A
R

K

N21°35'00"E

M=22.78'

N81°58'22"W

76.00'

51
.4

0'

274'±

239'±

N
13

°0
2'

05
"E

11
4.

22
'

S82°04'00"E
239.80'

N68°25'00"W
174.61'

P=23.00'

N68°25'00"W

76.00'
20.01'

73'±

48'±

174.66'

N68°25'00"W

NFENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

FENCE

SCALE: 1"   = 20'

1 SITE PLAN
A0.1 0 10' 20' 40'

Paul Fikse

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 23 of 60



AGENDA ITEM #6b  

HANNIGAN SPECIAL USE APPLICATION 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Case Number ........................ 2014-0003 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 5.1.2014 
 
Applicant ............................... John and Vickie Hannigan 
 
Request ................................ A special use permit to build an in-ground pool on a waterfront 

property  
 
Location ................................ 711 North Shore Drive. 
 
Parcel Numbers……………...80-53-840-010-60 
 
Size ....................................... 69,696 sq. feet (1.6 ac.) 
 
Street Frontage ..................... 25 feet 
 
Current Zoning ...................... R-1B Residential  
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No change  
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: R-1 B Residential  
 South: R-1 B Residential 
 East: R-1 B Residential 
 West: Lake Michigan 
 
Current Land Use .................. Single family residential 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Residential  
 South: Residential 
 East: Residential 
 West: Lake Michigan 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Single Family Residential 
 

 
CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The subject property is in an area of single family homes on waterfront lots similar to the 
Hannigan lot. The character of the area is consistant with the current zoning and future land use 
classification.  
 
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
John and Vickie request a special use permit to construct an inground swimming pool at the 
above address on North shore Drive. Swimming pools on waterfront properties require a special 
use permit according to zoning ordinance section 1725-2d. 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 24 of 60



  2013-0020 
 

 

PUBLIC RESPONSE 
NA 
 
EVALUATION 
The following relevant provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are followed by a statement 
representing the status of the subject property as it relates to that provision. 
 
Article XVII (Section 1725, 2-d, Swimming Pools) 
 

Pools shall be allowed only in side or rear yards except on waterfront lots abutting the 
Black River or Lake Michigan, where no pool is permitted in any yard without a special 
use permit. The planning commission shall ensure that views of the water from abutting 
property are not unreasonably obscured by the pool, a fence, or related accessory 
structures. 

 
The term “unreasonably” is concerning in this requirement. It will rest on the planning 
commission to determine whether the view obstruction is reasonable. Staff does not feel that the 
pool or fence will create an obstruction. The fencing on the lake side is to be placed just down 
the edge of the bank and will not be highly visible to neighboring properties. The applicant will 
be presenting a 3-D image of the pool and property at the meeting. 
 
With a final determination pending the applicant presentation, staff finds this application 
compliant with zoning requirement Section 1725, 2-d.   
 
Article XV (Section 1502, Basis of Determination): 
 
1. General standards - the Planning Commission shall review the particular circumstances 

of the special use permit application under consideration in terms of the following 
standards and shall approve a special use permit application only upon a finding of 
compliance with each of the following standards, as well as applicable standards 
established elsewhere in this ordinance:   

 
A. The special land use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained in 

a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the 
surrounding area. 

 
The proposed pool is consistent with the surrounding area. There are other homes in 
waterfront areas with pools and there is no reason to expect that the pool will be poorly 
maintained.  
 
B. The special land use shall not change the essential character of the surrounding 

area.   
 
The proposed use will have little or no impact on the neighborhood. There are other 
homes in waterfront areas with pools and there is no expectation that the pool will 
change the area character. 
 
C. The special land use shall not be hazardous to the adjacent property, property 

values, or involve uses, activities, processes, materials or equipment which will 
be detrimental to the health, safety or welfare of persons or property through the 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 25 of 60



  2013-0020 
 

 

excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, ground vibration, water 
runoff, odors, light, glare or other nuisance. 

 
No hazardous impacts are anticipated provided the pool is fenced as required by 
ordinance and state law. Any exterior lighting will need to be dark sky compliant. 
 
D. The special land use shall not place demands on public services and facilities in 

excess of current capacity unless planned improvements have already been 
scheduled for completion. 

 
No additional demands on public services are expected. 
 
E. The special land use is consistent with the intent of the comprehensive plan. 
 
The 2011 Master Plan does not specifically address swimming pools. 
 
F. The special land use shall meet the site plan review requirements of Article IV. 
 
The site plan meets all requirements for a project of this type. 
 
G. The special land use shall conform to all applicable state and federal 

requirements for that use. 
 
The application shows the fencing as required by state and local law. Since the property 
is not located in a high risk erosion area, no additional permits are needed for the pool.  
 
H. The special land use shall conform with all standards in this ordinance and other 

applicable city ordinances, including but not limited to parking (see Article XVIII), 
signs (see Article XX), and standards particular to the special land use found in 
the district provisions, schedule of regulations, or elsewhere. 

 
The application includes all necessary information for a proposal of this type.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
While staff has no reluctance in the approval of the special use request, the planning 
commission needs to review the case summary, visit the site and determine if this application 
for a special use permit meets the intent of the city and, if it does, include any conditions they 
feel necessary.  

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 26 of 60



 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
 

Project Review 
Black River Barge Restaurant 

 
 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
The applicant, Joe Wiltgen, is asking for site plan approval for a restaurant barge over the Black 
River. As shown on the site plan, the barge, which will be 20 feet by 120 feet, will be located 
directly upriver from the Idler at Old Harbor Village. This use is permitted without a special use 
permit or rezoning1. Water based businesses, as defined, also do not need to provide off-street 
parking2. The planning commission will complete site plan review of the project prior to any 
construction permits being issued. Staff gathered comments from city departments and those 
reviews are included in this agenda packet.  
 
At the time of this writing, there is some dispute over whether the barge is to be considered a 
permanently moored vessel or a watercraft. Letters are included in this review from the harbor 
master, the applicant’s attorney and the city attorney. It appears the city attorney’s opinion is 
that the barge restaurant would be allowed to extend beyond the harbor lines and would further 
be subject to state building codes.. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
If it has been determined that the proposed barge is in compliance with harbor rules, staff has 
no problem with approving the site plan provided all review comments have been addressed 
prior to construction. A summary of the comments is listed at the end of the Case Summary. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Completed application 
Site Plan 
Case Summary 
Department of Public Works Review 
Building Inspector Review 

                                                 
1 Section 201.23 defines: Water based business:  any business in which the proprietor, 
employee(s) or customer(s) physically board a ship, boat, barge or vessel at a marine terminal, 
including, but not limited to dinner boats, charter boats, passenger service, boat tours, 
watercraft rentals, and commercial fisheries 

2 Section 1800 h-1 reads: No parking area shall be required to be provided on-site for a water 
based business downstream of the Dyckman Avenue Bridge over the black river.  
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 27 of 60



 

Fire Marshal Review 
Electrical Department Review 
Harbor Master Review  
Police Chief Review 
Wiltgen Attorney Review 
City Attorney Review 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 28 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 29 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 30 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 31 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 32 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 33 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 34 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 35 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 36 of 60



GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Case Number ........................ SPR 2014-0002 
 
Date of Plan Commission ...... 05-01-2014 
 
Applicant ............................... Joe Wiltgen 
 
Request ................................ Operate a barge restaurant adjacent to a dock at Old Harbor 

Village  
 
Location ................................ 515 Williams Street, Unit #2 
 
Parcel Number ...................... 80-53-125-200-00 
 
Size ....................................... 20’x120’ barge restaurant  
 
Street Frontage ..................... NA 
 
Current Zoning ...................... B-3 Waterfront Business 
 
Proposed Zoning ................... No Change 
 
Contiguous Zoning ................ North: Black River 
 South: B-3 
 East: B-3 
 West:   B-3 
 
Current Land Use .................. Dock only 
 
Contiguous Land Uses .......... North: Black River  
 South: Old Harbor 
 East: Old Harbor 
 West:   Old Harbor 
 
Comp Plan Designation ........ Waterfront and Related Commercial/Recreation  
 

 

CHARACTER OF THE AREA 
The Subject Property is located at 423 Williams, Unit #2. The area is characteristic of the B-3 
zoning with waterfront businesses and condominuim type of residences. Many of the residences 
and businesses in the immediate area are seasonal. The character of the area is consistant with 
the current zoning and future land use classification in its general commercial use.  

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is asking for site plan approval for a restaurant barge over the Black River.  This 
use is permitted without a special use permit or rezoning1. Water based businesses also do not 

                                                           
1 Section 201.23 defines: Water based business:  any business in which the proprietor, 
employee(s) or customer(s) physically board a ship, boat, barge or vessel at a marine terminal, 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 37 of 60



  2012.0016 
 

Page 2 of 2 

need to provide off-street parking2.  In an opinion from the city attorney (attached), the barge is 
subject to site plan review and building code review. Staff gathered comments from city 
departments regarding land based issues such as access from the dock, safety concerns and 
utility connections. Those reviews are included in this agenda packet.  
 

PUBLIC RESPONSE 
N/A  
 

EVALUATION 
 

The zoning ordinance does not list specific regulations for the use proposed nor does it provide 
criteria for this type of site plan review. Since the barge will be over water, the setback 
requirements and maximum lot coverage provisions do not apply.  
 
The master plan includes policy and goal statements intended to encourage tourism and 
boating during the summer months. Projects such as this advance those recommendations by 
providing summer residents and visitors with another option for enjoying the waterfront.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
There are some issues that will need to be resolved if this project progresses. The applicant will 
need to work with the city departments and code officials to assure the project meets all city and 
state requirements. Based on the department reviews, other remaining issues include: 
 

1. Completion of the Wastewater Survey for Nonresidential Establishments 
2. Final electric plan approval by the electric department 
3. Further information will be needed as to fire detection systems, also emergency lighting 

and exit marking for the fire marshal 
4. The Harbor Master has recommended denial to the Harbor Commission based on the 

barge extending into the harbor lines (This is refuted by the applicant’s attorney (letter 
attached. The city attorney has also offered an opinion in this matter and that letter is 
also attached.) 

5. The building inspector requires that the plan show guardrails and maintain 44 inches of 
clear pathway along the length of the dock. He is also working with the engineer on 
plans for dock reconstruction prior to the issuance of any permits. 

 
These issues will need to be addressed in final drawings. The planning commission will also 
need to consider the determination of the harbor commission in deciding the site plan approval. 
The harbor commission will meet on April 15, 2014.  

                                                                                                                                                                                           

including, but not limited to dinner boats, charter boats, passenger service, boat tours, 
watercraft rentals, and commercial fisheries 

2 Section 1800 h-1 reads: No parking area shall be required to be provided on-site for a water 
based business downstream of the Dyckman Avenue Bridge over the Black River.  
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 38 of 60



Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Tuesday, April 15, 2014, 5:30 p.m.  
North Side Marina, 148 Black River Street 
 

                                        City of South Haven 

 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 Present:  Sullivan, Reineck, Silverman, Strong, Arnold 
 Absent:   Pyle, Stephens   
 
 Also present: Joe Wiltgen, Applicant for the Restaurant Barge at 515 Williams Street 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda  
 
 Motion by Strong, second by Silverman to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  March 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Motion by Reineck, second by Strong to approve the March 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
Minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
5.  Marina Reports 
 

VandenBosch gave an overview of the Marina Reports. 
 

6.  515 Williams Street Restaurant Barge, Site Plan Review  
 

VandenBosch explained that in his original review, he determined that if the barge were not 
inspected by the Coast Guard to carry passengers, it would be considered by the Coast 
Guard to be a land structure, and therefore as a structure would be subject to the prohibition 
on extending past the harbor line in Ordinance #740. The attorney opinion is that the barge is 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 39 of 60



  April 15, 2014 
  Harbor Commission Minutes  

  DRAFT 

2 

 

not subject to limits on extending past the harbor line, in part because the ordinance did not 
use the Coast Guard definition of land structure.  The city attorney stated that building codes 
apply and according to VandenBosch, the city will work out code issues in the permit process 
through the building, electrical and plumbing codes.  These will be reviewed after Planning 
Commission approval. VandenBosch recommends approval of the site plan because there 
does not appear to be a hazard to harbor traffic. 
 
Reineck questioned the Idler, and that they extend further than the proposed barge. 
VandenBosch stated that he originally thought they were grandfathered in to the harbor line 
restrictions, but according to the city attorney’s opinion they may extend past the harbor line. 
 
Strong asked about tying up boats to the barge; Joe Wiltgen said originally he planned to, but 
not now. Wiltgen noted that the original drawings showed gates on the outside railings for 
that purpose, but he has since decided against that. 
 
Sullivan asked if this barge will be Coast Guard inspected. Wiltgen responded that it is a 
barge and after calls to many different Coast Guard stations, he learned that the Coast Guard 
does not inspect barges.  
 
Sullivan expressed concern regarding a water event such as sinking or capsizing. 
VandenBosch said that there are no construction codes which directly address 
seaworthiness of a vessel. The inspector may be able to address some concerns such as 
construction material failure.  With a barge, VandenBosch noted it will be seaworthy for a 
long time; it might be many years before the hull might begin to have issues with rust.  
 
Sullivan questioned general safety to which VandenBosch responded that the building 
inspector will be reviewing ramps, handrails and walkways. Wiltgen stated that he has had 
the building inspector down there to the site multiple times and everything will be built to 
code. Wiltgen noted that his barge restaurant will not protrude as far out into the river as the 
Idler.  
 
Reineck asked if VandenBosch has any concerns. VandenBosch said his concern initially 
was whether the City Code prohibited the barge from extending past the harbor line, but the 
city attorney resolved that concern that in his opinion. 
 
Silverman asked about navigation in the area of the barge and VandenBosch noted that it is 
tucked into a corner where it will be located so there seems to be no problem with navigation. 
 
VandenBosch noted Harbor Commission’s focus is harbor traffic. Silverman stated that the 
two issues we had, based on the opinion of the city attorney and your explanation, the 
protrusion onto the harbor lines is not a problem and navigation concerns do not exist. 
 
Motion by Silverman, second by Strong to recommend the approval of the application to the 
Planning Commission for the restaurant barge at 515 Williams Street as proposed. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 40 of 60



  April 15, 2014 
  Harbor Commission Minutes  

  DRAFT 

3 

 

 
7.  Queen’s Cup Event Agreement 
 

VandenBosch said this was a last minute item, and he has since talked to Commodore Craig 
Needham, who sent him some information. VandenBosch has asked the city attorney to go 
through this and will call the attorney tomorrow so they can work through this agreement. 
VandenBosch recommended that the board table action on this item as there are some 
corrections that need to be made; no real big problems but VandenBosch would like the 
attorney to make the corrections and then meet with a representative for the Queen’s Cup 
and make sure the agreement is satisfactory to them. 
 
Motion by Silverman to table Item 7, Queen’s Cup Agreement; second by Reineck until 
corrections are made to the agreement by the attorney.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
Member and Staff Comments 
 

VandenBosch sent an email out to the Army Corps head of dredging. Believes that the 
dredge spoils in the channel may be a result of the private dredging that was done; will ask 
the Army Corps to do soundings. VandenBosch said if you want the Corps to do dredging, 
you ask them to do soundings. They have the expertise to determine whether the problem is 
due to something other than a natural event.  
 
Silverman noted that the silt was not there before the dredging and it was there immediately 
after the dredging. Reineck said the dredger does soundings as they work so he cannot see 
how it could be from the dredging. VandenBosch said depth was twelve (12) feet and now six 
(6) months later it is five and a half (5.5) feet. So we are waiting on the Army Corps to do 
their soundings and get back to us.  
 
Strong noted that we should let the lawyers work it out. Silverman commented that perhaps 
the Army Corps will allow a certain dollar amount.  
 
Silverman talked to close to half a dozen boaters who had done the loop, four (4) had 
stopped in South Haven and all four (4) raved about our facilities and our community. That is 
a potential source of transient traffic, because there are an incredible number of boats doing 
the loop and there are a couple of places they all look for information. VandenBosch noted he 
gets the Waterways Guide and is waiting for the dredger to get done so he can send out a 
press release and get some free advertising. VandenBosch said he has gone to “Active 
Captain” and has put stuff in everywhere he could on that site. Silverman noted there is a 
hard copy Looper Newsletter that might be another place for a press release.  

 
Adjourn 
 

Motion by Reineck, second by Strong to adjourn at 5:52 pm 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 41 of 60



  April 15, 2014 
  Harbor Commission Minutes  

  DRAFT 

4 

 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 42 of 60



 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 
 
Cc: Roger Huff, Ron Dotson 
 
From: Larry Halberstadt, PE, City Engineer 
 
Date: March 26, 2014 
 
RE: Site Plan Review Comments 
 Riverfront Restaurant 
 515 Williams St 
 
Engineering Department Review: General Comments Provided  
 
The proposed project consists of a 20 foot wide by 120 foot long by 18 foot high (maximum) 
floating structure (barge) that will be located in the South Haven Harbor adjacent to Unit 10 of 
Nichols Landing Condominiums.  The single story structure will float on the water of the Black 
River with approximately 1 foot of draft.  80 foot of the total length will be enclosed with a roof 
and will house a commercial kitchen, men’s and women’s restrooms, and a dining/bar area.  
The remaining 40 feet is open air dining/bar area. 
 
No parking spaces are being proposed with this development.  Pedestrian access to the 
structure will be via timber docks and walkways located within Unit 10 and the General Common 
Element of Nichols Landing.  Additionally, the structure has several mooring points on the 
northerly side for access from private watercraft.  Sheet 1 of the drawings illustrates a minimum 
clear path width of 36-inches along the pedestrian access from Williams Street.  Two gangways 
will provide pedestrian access between the timber dock and the floating structure.  The 
applicant has acknowledged on the drawing, the possible need to adjust the elevation of the 
timber dock in the future as necessary to accommodate extreme river level fluctuations while 
maintaining a gangway slope of 1:12 to meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act.  The drawings also indicate that the side slopes of the timber decking are too steep in some 
locations and will be reconstructed to meet ADA requirements. 
 
Sewer Department Review: Approved as Noted 
 
The drawing illustrates sanitary sewer service being extended from Building H of the Old Harbor 
Village Condominiums to serve the floating structure.  It is assumed that the plumbing inside 
Unit 15, on the ground floor of Building H, will be modified and extended to provide a point of 
connection for the floating structure.  In accordance with the Old Harbor Village Condominium 
Master Deed, the waste disposal network throughout the project is a General Common Element.  
This means that all building sewer pipes, drainage pipes, and vent pipes within the boundary of 

    Dept. of Public Works 
City of South Haven 

DPW Building • 1199 8th Ave. • South Haven, Michigan  49090 
Telephone (269) 637-0737 • Fax (269) 637-4778 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 43 of 60



Memorandum 
March 26, 2014 
Site Plan Review Comments 
Riverfront Restaurant 
Page 2 of 3 

Old Harbor Village Condominiums are private plumbing owned, operated, and maintained by 
the Condominium Owners as a whole, represented by their Association. 
 
The Old Harbor Village Condominium Master Deed reserves for Nichols Landing, its Co-
Owners, invitees, licensees, guests and assigns, a perpetual easement to utilize, tap, tie into, 
extend and enlarge all utility mains located on the condominium premises. 
 
It is assumed that sanitary waste will be collected on the floating structure into an ejector sump 
and pumped from the barge.  The drainage plumbing that is extended from Building H should be 
constructed in accordance with the current edition of the Michigan Plumbing Code.  The 
connection between the barge and land based plumbing should be made with flexible tubing to 
accommodate elevation changes of the barge due to fluctuating river levels.  The applicant will 
need to work with Old Harbor Village and the Plumbing Inspector to ensure that the private 
infrastructure within Old Harbor Village is suitable to accommodate the addition wastewater flow 
generated by the barge. 
 
The applicant must complete the Wastewater Survey for Nonresidential Establishments and 
Application for Wastewater Discharge prior to connection to the Old Harbor Village plumbing. 
 
Water Department Review: Approved as Noted 
 
The drawing illustrates water service being extended from Building H of the Old Harbor Village 
Condominiums to serve the floating structure.  It is assumed that the plumbing inside Unit 15, on 
the ground floor of Building H, will be modified and extended to provide a point of connection for 
the floating structure.  In accordance with the Old Harbor Village Condominium Master Deed, 
the water distribution network throughout the project is a General Common Element.  This 
means that all water service and water distribution pipes within the boundary of Old Harbor 
Village Condominiums are private plumbing owned, operated, and maintained by the 
Condominium Owners as a whole, represented by their Association. 
 
The Old Harbor Village Condominium Master Deed reserves for Nichols Landing, its Co-
Owners, invitees, licensees, guests and assigns, a perpetual easement to utilize, tap, tie into, 
extend and enlarge all utility mains located on the condominium premises. 
 
The water distribution piping that is extended from Building H should be constructed in 
accordance with the current edition of the Michigan Plumbing Code.  The connection between 
the barge and land based plumbing should be made with flexible tubing to accommodate 
elevation changes of the barge due to fluctuating river levels.  The applicant will need to work 
with Old Harbor Village and the Plumbing Inspector to ensure that the private infrastructure 
within Old Harbor Village is suitable to provide adequate drinking water supply to the barge. 
 
A reduced pressure principle backflow preventer shall be installed between the barge and 
Building H.  This backflow preventer must be located in an indoor area to prevent freezing and 
damage and must be accessible for inspection and maintenance. 
 
 
 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 44 of 60



Memorandum 
March 26, 2014 
Site Plan Review Comments 
Riverfront Restaurant 
Page 3 of 3 

Street Department Review: Approved 
 
Nichols Landing Condominiums do not have direct access to a public street.  Access to Nichols 
Landing is via private easements across adjoining properties.  No changes to Williams Street 
are being proposed with this project. 
 
Attachments 
 
Old Harbor Condominiums Master Deed Excerpt 
Wastewater Survey for Nonresidential Establishments 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 45 of 60



LIBER 8 j_ 3 PAGE 6 2 3 
time to time shall be deemed to have irrevocably and 
unanimously consented to such amendment or amendments to 
this Master Deed and the Condominium Subdivision Plan as are 
necessary, in the Association's sole discretion, to 
effectuate the purposes of this Article VI D as the same may 
be approved by the Administrator and all such persons 
irrevocably appoint the Association, its successors and 
assigns, as agent and attorney in fact for the purpose of 
execution of such amendment or amendments and all other 
documents as may be necessary to effectuate the purposes of 
this Article VI D. 

E. The following are easements retained by the 
Developer and granted to the Co-Owners in Nichols Landing, a 
condominium: 

(1) Roadway Easements: Developer reserves for the 
benefit of itself,-its successors and assigns, and grants to 
Nichols Landing, its Co-Owners, their licensees, invitees, 
guests, successors and assigns a perpetual easement for the 
unrestricted use of all roadways, walkways in the condomini
um for the purpose of ingress and egress to and from all or 
any portion of the parcel described in Article VIII and to 
and from Nichols Landing. 

{2) Utility Easements: Developer also hereby reserves 
for the benefit of itself, its successors and assigns, and 
for Nichols Landing, its Co-Owners, invitees, licensees, 
guests and assigns, and all future owners of the land 
described in Article VIII or any portion or portions there
of, perpetual easements to utilize, tap, tie into, extend 
and enlarge all utility mains located on the condominium 
premises, including, but not limited to, water, gas, storm 
and sanitary sewer mains." In the event Developer, or -
Nichols Landing, their successors, and assigns, utilizes, 
taps, ties into, extends or enlarges any utilities located 
on the condominium premises, they shall be obligated to pay 
all of the expenses reasonably necessary to restore the 
Condominium utilization, tapping, tying-in, extension or 
enlargement. 

{3) Parking Easement: Developer grants to the 
Co-Owners of Unit 9 of Nichols Landing, their invitees, 
licensees, guests and assigns a perpetual easement for 
parking on three spaces out of the five {to be designated) 
parking spaces located immediately to the South of Building 
A. 

(4) Trash Disposal: Deve~oper grants to the Co-Owners 
of Nichols Landing, their invitees, licensees, guests and 
assigns the perpetual easement for right to dispose of 
trash, garbage and similar refuse into the dumpster or trash 
disposal area located immediately to the East of Building C. 

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENT OF MASTER DEED 

A. The condominium documents may be amended by the 
Developer or the Association of Co-Owners without the 
consent of Co-Owners or mortgagees if the amendment does not 
materially alter or change the rights of a co-owner or 
mortgagee. An amendment which does not materially change 
the right of a co-owner or mortgagee includes, without 
limitation, a modification of the types and sizes of unsold 
condominium units and their appurtenant limited common 
elements. 

B. Except as provided in this Article VII, the Master 
Deed, Bylaws and Condominium Subdivision Plan may be amend
ed, even if the amendment will materially alter or change 
the rights of the co-owners or mortgagees, with the consent 

-R-

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 46 of 60

lhalberstadt
Highlight



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 47 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 48 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 49 of 60



 

 

 

 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 

 

  Preliminary Site Plan  Final Site Plan 

 

Name of Applicant:Joe Wiltgen 

 

Address of Applicant:      

 

Applicant Telephone No:      

 
Project name, if any:  Barge Restaurant                                                                                                                       

 

Project location: South Of the Idler on the black river 

 

Brief project description: to build a floating Restaurant 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

 

Are fire hydrants available at the site? Yes  No 

 Comments:           

 

 

Is water pressure adequate for the project? Yes  No 

 If no, explain:         

 

 

Does project layout provide easy access for fire protection? Yes  No  

 If no, explain: prooject is a barge on the river behind a large structure 

 

 

Are the proposed plans acceptable to the Fire Department? Yes  No 

 If no, explain:       

 

Other comments / recommendations: 

further information will be needed as to fire detection systems, also emergency lighting and exit 

marking.   

 

 

 
Review performed by  Tony Marsala Sr        Date  04-02-2014 

 

____________________________________________________________ 

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 50 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 51 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 52 of 60



April 2, 2014 

TO: Linda Anderson 

FR: Paul VandenBosch 

RE: 515 Williams Street Site Plan Review (Restaurant Barge) 

In reviewing the request to place the restaurant barge, I am referring to Chapter 38 of the South Haven 
Code of Ordinances, Harbors and Waterways, and Ordinance #740, known as the “Harborline 
Ordinance”. 

Ordinance #740 establishes project lines and states that no development shall extend past the project 
lines.  Section 38-4(2) of the Code of Ordinances prohibits any structure from extending past dock lines.  
Section 38-4(8) prohibits any encroachment upon established harbor lines. 

A watercraft or vessel may be moored so as to extend past the project line. In the case of a commercial 
business which invites customers on board a vessel, the US Coast Guard has the authority to inspect and 
certify vessels as suitable for carrying passengers.  The US Coast Guard has determined that watercraft 
which are moored and connected to land and not able to easily get under way are “land structures” 
even though they may be floating. 

A vessel that invites passengers aboard for commercial operation must either be licensed to carry those 
passengers by the US Coast Guard, or it is considered a land structure. 

The proposed restaurant barge appears to fall under the land structure definition of the US Coast Guard. 
As a land structure, it is subject to the project line limits imposed by the South Haven City Code. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Recommend to Planning Commission denial of the site plan review because the proposed restaurant 
barge appears to be a land structure that extends past the project lines as established by the City of 
South Haven. 

  

  

May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 53 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 54 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 55 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 56 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 57 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 58 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 59 of 60



May 01, 2014 
Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 60 of 60


	05-01-2014 PC Agenda pg
	02-06-2014 Planning Minutes draft
	03-06-2014 Planning Workshop Minutes
	Minutes pg. 2

	6a. Farm Stand Agenda packet
	application
	Case summary

	6b. Waterfront Pool Spec Use Permit packet
	Hannigan SU application
	Pool survey
	Hannigan site plan
	Case Summary

	7. Restaurant Barge Plan Review packet
	application
	Site Plan
	Site
	Plan
	Elevations

	Case summary
	04-15-2014 Harbor Comm Minutes draft
	DPW Review
	Building Official Review
	Fire Marshall Review
	Electrical Review
	April 2, 2014 Harbor Master review
	Police Chief Review
	Wiltgen Attorney Barge Opinion
	City Attorney Barge Restaurant Opinion




